Western Connecticut
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

WEST
— 4

Western Connecticut Council of Governments

May 18, 2017 - 12:30 p.m.

Location: Ridgefield Visiting Nurse Assoc. (RVNA)
27 Governor Street, Ridgefield, CT 06877

Agenda

1. Meeting call to order: Hon. Jayme Stevenson, Chairman

2. Featured guest: Patrick Santoso, Founder and Principal, Axiomatic LLC-
Presentation of CAMA coordination and implementation

3. Public participation

4. Action items:

a)
b)
)
d)
e
)

Approval of April 20, 2017 Minutes
UPWP Signatory Authorization
Summer meeting schedule

FY17-18 WestCOG Budget Approval
Approval of FY15-16 WestCOG Audit
MOU for Regional Election Monitor

5. Information items:

a)
b)
)
d)
e
f

State Matching Grant Program (13b-38bb)

Local Road Accident Reduction Program

OPM Responsible Growth and TOD Grant Opportunity
Legislative update

State Budget update

CEDS Project Solicitation

6. Next meeting: June 15,2017

7. Adjournment

Attachment 2, pp. 1-25

Attachment 4a, pp. 26-28
Attachment 4b, pg. 29

Attachment 4d, pp. 30-31

Attachment 4e, pp. 32-36
Attachment 4f, pp. 37-41

Attachment 5a, pp. 42-46

For language assistance or other accommodations, contact Western Connecticut Council of Governments at least five business days prior to the
meeting at help@westcog.org. Para asistencia con el idioma y otras adaptaciones, por favor pongase en contacto con West COG por lo menos cinco
dias hdbiles antes de la reunion al help@westcog.org. Para obter assisténcia lingua ou outras acomodagdes, entre em contato com WestCOG pelo
menos cinco dias tteis antes da reunifio em help@westcog.org.


mailto:help@westcog.org
mailto:help@westcog.org
mailto:help@westcog.org

Attachment 2

WESTERN CONNECTICUT
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

Existing Conditions & Initial Recommendations Report

DRAFT

PREPARED FOR: PREPARED BY:

WestCOG Axiomatic, LLC

Carl Zimmerman, PhD Patrick Santoso

1 Riverside Road 500 Market Street, Unit 2B
Sandy Hook, CT 06482 Portsmouth, NH 03801
czimmerman@westcog.org Patrick@axiomnh.com

APRIL 18, 2017 @aXiomatic

Page 1 of 46



CONTENTS

EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ccuuuurunnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnsmmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 2
PrOCESS OVEIVIEW ..cevvveennnnnsnsssssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssse 4
Y UL ol | I 1= o OO PP P TP PP TTPPTO 4
Land Development / BUuilding DEPartMENt .......ccocueeiruieerieerieeeiee et esiieestee st e s steeesateesebeesbeesseeeesaneesaseesnseeenens 5
Mapping DepartMent / CONSUILANT ........ccuiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e et ae e e e etbe e e e s bbe e e esabaeeesenreeeesnrees 5
N T o o 0 i o TSP 5
2T Y- < 0] | =Tt o TP PRR 5
PUBIIC ACCESS WEDSITES ... ittt ettt e ettt e e et e e s st b e e e e abae e e e abeeessabbeeessnbaeeesnbeeesansnes 6
Municipal EXisting CONAitioNS......cccccvvrmreriiiiiiiissnreettiiicssssnnneeeeessssssssnnsesesssssssssnnsessssssssssnnsens 7
Real Property CAMA & REVAIUGTION ...ccciiiiiiiiiieee ettt e e e e sttt e e e e e e s st r e e e e e e s s naatbaaeeeeeeesennsenees 8
(0o Y0010 o TV T oY1 1AV 2 o 11N 8
REVAIUGTION CYCIES. ...eiiiiiiieiiiee ettt ettt ettt e sttt e e ettt e e s abt e e s aadee e abe e e e abeeesanbeeesasbaeessbbeesnnssaesnnsbaesnssseeanns 9
Software & MaiNtENANCE ABIEEIMENTS ....cccccceiiiieeeeeeciireeeeeeesetrreeeeeeaasessaaeeeeaaaasessseeeesasasssssseesseasssssssseeseeensssnssseeeens 12
] LT I O o T4 o1 o ] USSR 14
Valuation Methods for REal Property OVEIVIEW..........c..uuriieeeieiciiiieeieeeseeiteeeeeeesssssaeseeeesasssssssaeeesesssssssseeesessssssssseeeeens 14
ParCEl MaPDING oo 15
PUDIIC Data ACCESS POITAlS .ottt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e s s bbb e e e e e e s s aabbbbeeeeesssannnbrneeas 16
Transfers & LOt LINE CNANGES.......uuiiiiiiiiiiiieee e e e eeeiitee et e e e e sitaaaeee e e e e e st taeeeeeeesssansesaaeeeseeaansssaaeaeesssanssrneeeeanens 17
=14 0 (o o = PP UUPPRPRN 18
BHIING & COllOCLIONS. ..o 19
Personal Property CAMA ... 20
INitial RECOMMENAALIONS.....cueiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiisisie et sesre s sssasse s s e s s s s s aasne e s s s sssssssansssssssssssssnnnnsesssssssssnsnnns 22
Regionalized CAMA
Other Regionalization OPPOrTUNITIES. ......eeeieiieeiieeeieeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeseeseesaeeeeeearareeeeaaeeeeraerarrerresserasssnnrsnnnnnnnns 23

** Appendices are not included, but are available upon request.

00  naton and Implementat 1 @axiomatic

Page 2 of 46




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Axiomatic, in partnership with WestCOG and its member communities, has conducted a study to determine the possibility
for regional cooperation of Property Appraisal, and the viability of a regionalized Real Property Computer Assisted Mass
Appraisal (“CAMA”) system. A stakeholder kick-off web meeting was conducted on February 22, 2017, and an online survey
was distributed via email on March 1, 2017 with an invitation to participate in the process and schedule in person
interviews. A total of 11 surveys were completed online. Three (3) municipalities declined to meet with the project team:
Bethel, Sherman, and Westport.

Telephone interviews were conducted between March 8, 2017 and April 5,2017. On-site interviews were conducted from
March 13, 2017 through March 17, 2017, with follow-ups continuing into early April. During the interviews data about Real
and Personal Property CAMA, Billing and Collection, Building Permit, and Town Clerk systems were abstracted and
compiled. Additionally, exports of CAMA data and GIS parcel maps were gathered and other areas where regional
cooperation would benefit the communities were explored. A summary of municipal software configurations is provided in
Table 1 with the most common configuration being: Appraisal Vision Real Property CAMA, and QDS Personal Property
CAMA, QDS Billing and Collections, and COTTS Town Clerk portal.

Real Real Personal Billing & Building
Property Property Property Collections Town Clerk Permit Parcel Map
Municipality CAMA Records CAMA Software Software Software Maintainer

Univers 7,900 - - - - Tighe & Bond

. . Assessor
Vision 6.x 1,062 Qbs Qbs COTTS None &WestCOG?
Sharlow Tech
Brookfield Vision 6.5 7,492 QDS QDS Other View Permit Group & New
England Geo

Vision 6.4 27,663 QDs QDs COTTS Egov Sewall
[EEE iasworld 7,058 Walsh Walsh COTTS City View Assessor
CT Land .
m ProVal 22,332 QDS QDS Records (Harris) Assessor
Vision6.5 7,401 Qbs Qbs COTTS Cornerstone Tighe & Bond
New -
Fairfield Vision 6.x 6,500 - - - None Assessor
Vision 6.x 13,040 Qbs Qbs COTTS - Assessor
Newtown Vision 6.5 12,147 Qbs Qbs COTTS View Permit IT/GIS
IEEIS vision 7.4 29,600 Munis Munis Custom/legacy ~ View Permit Internal
Redding Vision 6.5 4,050 QDS QDS COTTS Acella CDM Smith
Ridgefield EZ‘;":!W 10,000 QDS Qps COTTS View Permit Internal
= = = = = View Permit =
LTI vision6.5 37,880 QDs QDs Other - Internal
RIESET vision6.5 4,013 QDs COTTS View Permit  New England GEO
| Westport  RVEINIR - - - COTTS Munis City Sewell
Vision65 7,010 QDS Qs CT Land - CAl
Records

Table 1: Municipal Software Profile

00  naton and Implementat 2 @axiomatic

Page 3 of 46

Q




Municipal interviews were positive with respect to the concept of regionalization, and yielded a wealth of data and

potential regionalization options. Nearly all communities were interested in reviewing options for regional cooperation, and

many expressed ideas themselves. It was determined that a regional Real Property CAMA implementation is not feasible for
WestCOG for the following reason:

Cities would be unlikely to benefit from a regional CAMA;

Three communities with exceptionally high property values (Darien, Greenwich, and New Canaan) would be
difficult to integrate due to their unique valuation models.

The remaining eight (8) communities, which use Vision would likely incur more costs converting and
standardizing than they would save in licensing and hosting costs.

Only four (4) communities (of the eight from above) will be conducting revaluations within a timeframe that
would be conducive to a regionalization project. There is little to no desire at the municipal level to convert
systems.

Although there are significant hurdles to regionalized Real Property CAMA, through the discovery process other potential
regionalization efforts were identified. These activates all orbit or are related to the Real Property CAMA process/system
and could create greater collaboration and information sharing amongst the WestCOG communities.

WestCOG
CAMA Coordil

Regional GIS Parcel Website: This would facilitate economic development and eliminate or reduce the need
for each municipality to procure and maintain their own online GIS portal. This could be particularly beneficial
for smaller communities, and would provide a common access point across all WestCOG municipalities.

Automated Deed Integration: Facilitating an automated data transfer to the most common Town Clerk Portal
(QDS) and CAMA (Vision) would provide significant benefits to several communities by significantly reducing
duplicated manual data entry. Cost-sharing among participating communities would make this integration
affordable. This idea was mentioned in several interviews.

Group Implementation of Personal Property E-File: There is an opportunity for WestCOG to facilitate Personal
Property E-file, reducing data entry and paperwork for both assessing staff and filers.

GIS Parcel Map Updates: There is an opportunity to provide a parcel map updating service for smaller
communities who have had difficulty getting their maps updated due to the small number of changes each
year.

User Group for Permitting Implementation: Many of the WestCOG communities are implementing
ViewPermit by Viewpoint. Creating a user group would allow WestCOG communities to learn from each
other’s experiences and potentially centralize training and deployment. It should be noted that CRCOG already
has a regional online permit center.

Complex Property Data Sharing & Knowledge Base: There was some desire to create an ability to share
information about complex or difficult to assess properties (Golf Courses, Complex Manufacturing/Research
facilities, etc.). This would allow easy comparison with neighboring communities. This could also be expanded
to include an abatement database to allow Assessors to research abatements granted or rejected in
neighboring communities to improve their own practices. This concept could easily be scaled to benefit all
Connecticut municipalities.

E-File Exemptions: There were varied opinions about creating an e-file portal for exemptions. Several
communities volunteered the idea, in surveys and in person, and were excited about the prospect. Others

N 3 @axiomatic

Page 4 of 46



however, indicated they preferred the paper process. E-file would greatly reduce data entry and could reduce
administrative costs. This concept could easily be scaled to benefit all Connecticut municipalities.

PROCESS OVERVIEW

The general methods for maintaining Land Records e.g. assessment, parcel map, permit and real estate transfer data are
fairly standard throughout the United States. The government agencies that maintain the data, and the software they use,
vary from state to state. State and local laws impact the type of attributes, update frequencies and valuation methods that
governments use for land record maintenance. The process for Connecticut municipalities generally, and WestCOG
municipalities specifically, is described in described in detail in this section.

Axiomatic conducted an online survey and subsequent interviews with municipal officials in March and April of 2017. The
municipal interview process provided insight into the pathways in which data flows from one system to another, and how
the various data sets are updated and disseminated. Figure 1 illustrates a high-level overview of the data and systems in
each municipal department and how they interact with each other. Each department or data input/output are discussed in
the following sections.

Name/Address Updates
(select communities only)

Public Inputs Land Development / Consultant / City Public Outputs
Building Dept. Dept.
> l ------------ > Map >
Updates
Building Permit Building Permit BuH:ding GIS Parcel GIS Parcel
Application Software Updates Map Viewer
i " Detailed Export & Live Feed =
‘Lot Adjustments & CAMA Export--- >
H Map Summary Export
Municipal Clerk Updates Assessor Assessar
Portal
o I I q: |
>
"""""" Sales & Lot Finance Department
Clerk Software Adjustments Real Property
Deed | CAMA
Porta
Property
Tax Bill
----------- >
Billing &
0 > Collections
Personal Property
Personal Property CAMA
Declaration Key

Vision-QDS Data Sync (“Bridge” }—»

MUNICIPAL CLERK

Figure 1: Land Records Data Flow

The municipal clerk records property transfers and lot-line adjustments in the form of deed records, survey/subdivision
plans and other documents or instruments. These instruments can reflect changes in ownership, such as owner name and

mailing address; as well as parcel boundary adjustments, such as acreage and parcel boundary lines, which are recorded in

WestCOG
CAMA Coordination and

4
Page 5 of 46

@axiomatic




the Town Clerk’s software application. Data is then manually abstracted either from paper files or from a web interface and
manually keyed into the Real Property CAMA System, Personal Property CAMA system, and in some communities, the
Billing/Collections system to update ownership and mailing address.

LAND DEVELOPMENT / BUILDING DEPTARTMENT

Land Development or Building Departments process building permits which includes information indicating changes to the
building, land, or extra features that may impact the assessed value. Assessors use permit information as an indicator that
real property record needs to be reviewed and/or updated. Data transfer between the building permit office and Assessor’s
office is manual, abstracted either from paper files or from web access to then update the Real Property CAMA System.

MAPPING DEPARTMENT / CONSULTANT

Deeds and plans recorded with the Town Clerk, which contain lot line changes, are assembled by the Assessor and are sent
to a Municipal Department e.g. Planning, Zoning, Engineering, Land Development, etc. or a cartographer (contracted third
party) who maintains the parcel maps at a minimum annually. Parcel maps are updated and shared back with the Assessor
for integration into the Real Property CAMA System, and are also transferred to their online GIS portal- most often the
same municipal department or consultant that maintains the map maintains the GIS portal. Note that not all WestCOG
municipalities maintain a GIS portal to serve out geospatial parcel information.

ASSESSOR’S OFFICE

The Assessor’s office manages Real Property and Personal Property CAMA data through independent software systems.
Real Property CAMA is updated manually through permit data provided by Land Development / Building Department. Deed
and or subdivision data comes from the Municipal Clerk’s office and through the pickup, statistical update, and revaluation
processes conducted by the Assessor’s office. Real Property CAMA is used to generate assessed values for property taxation
and feeds data directly into the Billing and Collections system to update taxable values and taxpayer name and mailing
address.

The Real Property CAMA also provides exports to (1) a municipal department or contracted third party to update parcel
maps; (2) GIS Parcel Viewer website; (3) Assessor Portal Website. The GIS Parcel Viewer allows residents to generate
abutter lists, and view and print parcel maps online. The Assessor’s Portal allows residents to view detailed valuation
information about a subject property including generating and printing field cards with sketches and building photos.

The Personal Property CAMA System is updated manually via hard copy (paper) and personal property declarations, except
for Darien, New Milford and Norwalk which have online filing. Often taxpayer data is transferred from the Real Property
CAMA to the Personal Property CAMA to update taxpayer and mailing information after a property is transferred. The
Personal Property CAMA depreciates the personal property assets and provides a taxable value, and taxpayer mailing
address is sent to the billing and collections system via an automated data transfer.

BILLING & COLLECTION

The Billing and Collections system receives updates from Real and Personal Property CAMA systems including taxable value
and taxpayer mailing address via an automated data transfer. In rare instances ownership and taxpayer mailing address are
manually abstracted from the Town Clerk’s system to update billing information between data transfers. The Billing and
Collections systems generates tax bills which are typically sent to a third-party vendor for printing. Mailing is typically
handled by the municipality, but some do have the vendor both print and mail the bills. Most communities print their own
delinquency tax statements after the initial tax bills are sent.

00  naton and Implementat 5 @axiomatic

Page 6 of 46




PUBLIC ACCESS WEBSITES

Most communities provide public access to their Real Property and GIS property data via online portals. Real Property data
is made available through a searchable database interface that provides users with property attribute summaries, photos,
and building sketches (16 communities have online access). GIS parcel data is made available through online geospatial
applications which allows users to navigate a map to identify parcels or through a search interface that allows access to
limited attributes (9 communities have online access). Many of the public access websites are provided by third party
vendors, although larger municipalities may develop and maintain their own systems.

wewcos 6 @®@axiomatic

CAMA Coordi and

Page 7 of 46



MUNICIPAL EXISTING CONDITIONS

Axiomatic developed an online survey that was disseminated to WestCOG member communities on March 1, 2017. The
survey was designed to capture baseline information about assessing, parcel mapping, tax billing and collections. A copy of
the survey and results are listed in Appendix B. A total of 11 surveys were completed. Following the survey, on-site
meetings were scheduled with communities that expressed a willingness to participate in the project. Three (3)
municipalities declined to meet with the project team: Bethel, Sherman, and Westport.

Telephone interviews were conducted between March 8, 2017 and April 5, 2017. On-site interviews were conducted from
March 13, 2017 through March 17, 2017, with follow-ups via phone over the following weeks. The interviews were
organized based on municipal availability and the initial data from the survey responses was used to guide discussions
about software, data and workflows. Interviews were scheduled for a minimum of one hour. Meetings scheduled on March
14, 2017 were rescheduled due to a weather (Winter Storm Stella) which caused all Municipal governments to close.
Meetings canceled due to the storm were re-scheduled for later in the week. Ridgefield scheduled their meeting for April 5,
2017 due to Assessor availability, a contract Assessor who works with two (2) towns. In addition to the survey and interview
process, Axiomatic requested exports from each communities Real Property CAMA system and a copy of their geospatial
parcel map information. Table 1 indicates the status of the municipal survey, interview process and requested data
exports/copies for each WestCOG member community.

Survey Completed

Municipality m Tax Collector Municipal Interview CAMA Export

Parcel Export

Bethel Yes No Declined Declined Declined
Bridgewater Yes Yes 3/20/2017 9:00AM Yes Requested
Brookfield Yes Yes 3/15/2017 1:00PM Yes Yes
Danbury Yes No 3/15/2017 10:00AM Yes Yes
Yes Yes 3/15/2017 10:00AM Yes Yes
No No 3/16/2017 1:00PM Yes Yes
New Canaan No No 3/22/2017 10:00AM Yes Yes
New Fairfield Yes No Declined Declined Declined
Yes No 3/21/2017 10:00AM Yes Yes
Yes No 3/8/2017 11:00AM Yes Yes
No No 3/17/2017 1:00PM Fee Fee
Redding No No 3/16/2017 10:00AM Yes Yes
Ridgefield No No 4/5/2017 10:00AM Considering Considering
No No Declined Declined Declined
No No 3/16/2017 3:00PM Yes Yes
No No 3/17/2017 11:00AM Declined Declined
No No Declined Declined Declined
No No 3/21/2017 10:00AM Yes Requested

Table 2: Survey and Interview Schedule

During the interviews, municipal officials discussed both the strengths and weaknesses of their software and associated

workflows. They were asked to expand upon areas of ambiguity in the survey responses and to recommend improvements

to both applications, data, and workflows. Attention was given to regional collaboration, inter-departmental workflows,

manual processes, and “pain points”. Additionally, the interviews revealed applications and services that were in-use but

were not explicitly part of the Survey Questionnaire (COTTS System for Town Clerks, Quality Data Services (QDS) for

Personal Property CAMA and administrative functions). All interactions were positive, and each municipality indicated they

would be interested to see the results of the study and the possible regional collaboration options. The interview content

has been combined with the survey responses and is summarized in the subsequent sections.

WestCOG

CAMA Coordination an

Q

7

Page 8 of 46

@axiomatic



REAL PROPERTY CAMA & REVALUATION

COMMUNITITY PROFILES

The WestCOG communities span a broad cross-section of populations, parcel counts, property types and base
valuations across 18 municipalities in two (2) Counties- Fairfield and Litchfield. WestCOG contains 15 smaller
municipalities and 3 larger municipalities (Danbury, Norwalk, and Stamford) with all municipalities being
encompassed by the New York Metropolitan Statistical Area (https://www.census.gov/population/metro/). Figure
2 contains a breakdown of the municipalities and their respective populations as determined by the 2010 census.

2010 US Census Population

140k
120k
100k

80k
60k
40k
20k
Ok
S
3
c
8
G

Figure 2: 2010 US Census Populations

Bethel -

Bridgewater I

Darien -

stamford |

Weston .

Norwal |

Redding .

Newtown -
ridgefield [

Sherman I

Brookfield -
Danbury
New Canaan -
New Fairfield -
Westport -
Wilton -

New Milford -

There is a large disparity in the average assessed value per parcel among the WestCOG communities because the
COG encompasses some of the most affluent communities in the Country (Greenwich, Darien, New Canaan). These
communities have average assessed values in excess of one million dollars as determined through analysis of Real
Property CAMA exports provided by participating communities. The disparity in property values indicates that their
valuation models, unit costs, and capitalization rates must be significantly different than “average” communities to
produce accurate assessed values. This would be a challenge to combine into a single regional system used by
communities with different valuation profiles. The average assessed value per parcel is shown in Figure 3. It must
be noted that Connecticut state law stipulates property must be valued at 70 percent of its fair market value (CGS
§ 12-62a (b)).

WestCOG

00  naton and Implementat 8 @axiomatic

Page 9 of 46



https://www.census.gov/population/metro/
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/chap_203.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/chap_203.htm

WestCOG

CAMA Coordi

Average Assessed Parcel Value

$2.00 M
$1.50 M
$1.00 M
$0.50 M
T 5 T TS5 § T TS E 2T ST OSOEOS
3 € 2 5 3:2¢ £ 8 £33 ¢ £ €5 82
s 3 8§ § 6 § 8§ 5 5 = 6§ ¢ $ 8 E £ § 32
@ O AN 9] w v z x T § 2 2
T = & 32 = 3 =2 4 @
fe GJCUCIJ
o ZZZ

Figure 3: Average Real Estate Value Derived from CAMA Export

REVALUATION CYCLES

Each year municipalities certify their assessed values on October 1 to power the property tax billing and collections
process. During the year, municipalities capture changes into the real property e.g. construction, demolition,
permits, inspections, etc. which impact the assessed value. Periodically municipalities must conduct a revaluation
(“reval”) of all property to ensure fair and equitable taxation. Over the past twenty-five years, Connecticut state
law has been changed four (4) times to establish varying intervals for revaluations as shown in Table 3.

Time Frame Full Cycle Statistical Update Inspection Cycle Statutory Reference
10 years Every 5 years 10 years N/A
12 years Every 4 years 12 years PA 95-283
4 years Every 4 years 12 years PA 97-254
5 years Every 5 years 12 years CGS § 12-62 (b)(1), PA 04-2

Table 3: Connecticut revaluation, update, and inspection cycle history.

In 2006, the Connecticut Legislature adjusted the allowable methods by which a municipality could perform a
revaluation. Prior to 2006 the only “acceptable” revaluation method was a statistical updates or inspection.
Following the change in law, it was made explicitly clear that Assessors could use mass appraisal methods such as
comparable sales, cost of replacement, and the income approach (CGS § 12-62(b) (2)).

Per Connecticut law, all WestCOG communities are on a five-year revaluation cycle with many conducting
revaluations in 2017. The revaluation cycle schedules for WestCOG communities are shown in Figure 4. All
interviewed communities utilized either Tyler, Vision, or JF Ryan for their previous revaluation work. It is common
in Connecticut and around the country for municipalities to use specialized, certified contractors to perform
revaluation and inspection work. It should be noted that Real Property CAMA software transitions, such as
changing from one vendor’s system to another, typically occur during revaluation cycles.

N 9 @axiomatic

Page 10 of 46



5-Year Reval Cycles & Vendors

W JFRyan M Tyler M Vision M Equality Unknown (Next Cycle)

Bethel
Danbury
Newtown
Redding
Ridgefield
Stamford
Wilton
Darien

New Caanan
Norwalk
Sherman
Weston
New Fairfield
Greenwich
New Milford
Westport
Bridgewater
Brookfield

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Figure 4: Revaluation Cycles & Vendors

Total assessed value is derived from Real Property CAMA exports for residential, commercial, industrial and
manufactured homes and is summarized against total acreage and parcel count in Figure 5 and Table 2. Complete
breakdowns of property values by land use code are provided in Appendix C. The disparity in assessed values is an
obstacle to utilizing a single regional CAMA system and would necessitate many valuation models be utilized.

Community Comparison M Parcels WAcreage M Value
40 $40
35 $35

30 $30

m
i)
c
©
(%}
3 m
2 2
= 2
i’ 25 $25 =
[} [=2)
o =
L 20 $20 g
&) ©
= 15 $15 =
S 3
o o
o 10 $10 +
3
- I I I -
: [
0 SO

§ § ¥ T 5 5§ £ T 3 S T P S5 z ¥ = g ¢t

e} = v = © o

S 3 3 £ < 5 £ € 3 8 2 ¢ 2 E g E B

3 =z o ® 2 o § ¢ @ = S5 E § § &5 % 8§ %

oo o w o [ - fo] o zZ el <

° = z = z =z & £ z 9 =

s > [] [ ] O

23] = =2 2

Figure 5: Summary of Total Value, Acreage, and Parcel Count
WestcoG 1 1
bt condiatonand et 10 @®@axiomailic

Page 11 of 46



No. Of Total Total Average Last Last Reval Next
Municipality ~ Parcels  Acreage Value Value Reval Vendor Reval
7,900 - - - 2012 Tyler 2017
1,062  10,162.23 $383,386,722 $361,004 2016 Vision 2021
7,492  11,375.71 $2,092,968,440 $279,360 2016 Vision 2021
27,663  24,510.87 $7,613,229,100 $275,213 2012 Vision 2017
| Darien WA - - - 2013 Tyler 2018
T 22,332 2821212 $34,696,076,940 $1,553,648 2015  Tyler,JFRyan 2020
7,401  13,280.73 $8,533,170,598 $1,152,975 2013 JF Ryan 2018

New Fairfield 6,500 = = = 2014 Vision 2019
| New Milford [IREXT) - - - 2015 Vision 2020

I 12147 36598.40 $3,088,528,593 $254,535 2012 Vision 2017

A 29,600 - - - 2013 - 2018

Redding 4,050  19,607.46 $1,671,058,748 $412,302 2012 - 2017

Ridgefield 10,000 = $4,800,000,000 = 2012 Equality 2017

- S ; S 2013 Unknown 2018

[EEEERT 37,880 21,695.83  $20,377,626,593 $537,952 2012 Vision 2017
4,013 - - - 2013 Vision 2018

- o - - 2015 Unknown 2020
7,010 16,005.55 $4,363,719,250 $622,499 2012 Vision 2017

Table 4: Tabular Community Summary

LOCAL OPTION EXEMPTIONS & CREDITS

Connecticut, like most states, has various local options for property tax exemptions and credits that can reduce the
property tax burden for certain classifications of homeowners and property types. Connecticut statutes allow for
property tax relief, including but not limited to low income, seniors, disability, veterans and emergency personnel,
and surviving spouses of emergency personnel or veterans. A list of all available exemption and credit programs for
Connecticut are listed in Appendix A. A selection of local option exemptions that have been enacted by WestCOG
communities are shown in Table 5. Having different adoptions of local option exemptions and credits presents an
obstacle to utilizing a single regional CAMA system as it would need to manage eligibility, adoption and local
option exemption amounts for each jurisdiction.

During the municipal interview process, there were differing opinions on the exemption application process. The
process of applying for an exemption typically requires supporting documentation, such as proof of low-income
status, proof of advanced age, or proof of military service, and can be very cumbersome. Some communities
indicated that it was “a lot of paperwork” and should be automated. Others felt that the elderly exemption would
be better conducted in an in-person review of the form and required documentation, as applicants frequently do
not provide the correct documentation or miss-fill the form. The application requires information like gross
income, non-taxable interest, and copies of federal income tax returns, which may not be easy to acquire.

00  naton and Implementat 11 @axiomatic

Page 12 of 46




Municipality Disabled Elderly Veterans

Bethel No Yes Yes
Bridgewater Yes Yes No
Brookfield Yes Yes No
Danbury Yes Yes Yes
No Yes Yes
No Yes Yes
New Canaan No Yes No
New Fairfield Yes Yes Yes
No Yes Yes
Yes Yes Yes
No Yes No
Redding No Yes No
Ridgefield Yes Yes Yes
Yes Yes Yes
No Yes Yes
No Yes Yes
Westport -
No Yes No
Totals 7 17 11

Table 5: Summary of Adopted Exemptions

SOFTWARE & MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS

Real Property CAMA is used to capture, model and value land, building and extra feature attributes, for
determining assessed value. The system also includes ownership, taxpayer contact info, and sales/transfer
information. Additionally, CAMA contains three (3) valuation model engines- Cost, Income, and Market. This is
further discussed in the valuation methods overview section, though smaller CAMA systems may not contain all
three methods. There are currently four (4) primary CAMA systems in use in the WestCOG member communities
with Appraisal Vision being the predominant system. Figure 6 breaks down the CAMA systems by percentage and
Table 6 details the CAMA systems, hosting infrastructure, deployment year and approximate annual maintenance
fees. It should be noted that all of the communities who were interviewed clearly expressed that they were
satisfied with the existing system and were not interested in switching CAMA. This is largely due to the high cost of
system conversion. A discussion of each system follows.

Deployed CAMA Software

Proval (1) P vision 7.4 (1)
Total Valuation
(1)
Vision 6.5 (7)
Equality Data (1)
I \/ision6.4 (1)
iasworld(l) - ( )
Vision 6.x (4
Univers (1) /

Figure 6: Deployed CAMA software solutions.

00  naton and Implementat 12 @axiomatic

Page 13 of 46




Hosting/

Municipality Software Management  Year Deployed Annual Fee
Univers Vendor Unknown No Response
Vision 6.x Vendor 1998 $1,500
Vision 6.5 In-House IT Unknown $8,750-$10,000
Vision 6.4 In-House IT 1997 $10,000
| Darien | iasWorld In-House IT 1999 $9,300
| Greenwich | ProVal In-House IT 2001 $25,000
Vision 6.5 In-House IT 2003 Research
Vision 6.x Vendor 2012 No Response
Vision 6.x In-House IT 1990 $3,000
Vision 6.5 In-House IT 2009 Research
[ Norwalk | Vision 7.4 In-House IT Unknown $7,000
Vision 6.5 In-House IT 2007 $5,000
Equality data Vendor 2002 $5000-6000
[ stamford | Vision 6.5 In-House IT 2002 $13,000
[ Weston | Vision 6.5 In-House IT 1998 $10,000
[ Westport | Vision 6.x - - -

[ wilton | Vision 6.5 In-House IT 2002 $9,000

Table 6: Tabular CAMA, Vendor & Fees

APPRAISAL VISION (VISION GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS)

Thirteen (13) of the eighteen (18) WestCOG communities are utilizing Appraisal Vision (Norwalk is on Version 7.4
the remainder are on Version 6.4 or 6.5) and hosting their Real Property CAMA internally. It should be noted that
Norwalk is the only jurisdiction who has updated Appraisal Vision to Version 7.X which is the most current. As an
early adopter, they encountered difficulties in the upgrade process, but they are happy with the new system.
Overtime Vision 6.X clients will be upgraded to vision 7.X providing a consistent platform among the Vision
customers. None of the WestCOG communities that use Appraisal Vision expressed any desire to switch systems.

PROVAL (THOMSON REUTERS)

Currently Proval is only being used by Greenwich. Proval is a legacy system that has been acquired by numerous
companies during its existence. It was initially developed by Proval who was acquired by Manatron who was
subsequently acquired by Thomson Reuters. There are indications that Thomson Reuters may be planning to
sunset Proval and move its clients to the Aumentum platform (https://goo.gl/oj1kxh). Greenwich is currently

satisfied with Proval, and did not express a desire to switch systems.

IASWORLD (TYLER TECHNOLOGIES)

WestCOG

CAMA Coordi

Currently “iasWorld” is only being used by Darien. “iasWorld” is Tyler Technologie’s flagship Real Property CAMA
system and has installations across the United States. Darien indicated they are happy with “iasWorld” and are not
interested in switching systems. Darien also has an affinity for “iasWorld” as Tyler also has performed their
revaluations and have subject matter expertise with high-value property.

o e mplementat 13 @axiomatic

Page 14 of 46


https://goo.gl/oj1kxh

UNIVERS (TYLER TECHNOLOGIES)

Currently Univers is only being used by Bethel. Univers is a legacy product that is still in use in numerous states but
is no longer being sold or installed for new clients. Bethel completed the online survey but declined an interview
and offered no comment on their satisfaction with Univers.

EQUALITY (FKA TOTAL VALUATION) (EQUALITY VALUATION SERVICES)

Currently eQuality (Total Valuation) is only being used by Ridgefield. The product was developed by and is
maintained a Connecticut company located in Waterbury, CT. The system is currently only used in Connecticut.
They are currently satisfied with the product.

STAFFING & CONTRACTORS

Assessor’s office staffing for real and personal property assessment is summarized in Table 7 for participating
communities. These staff counts do not include billing, collections, clerk, or building/zoning/land use. These totals
do not include contractors used for re-valuations.

Municipality Full-Time Part-Time Contractors
Bethel - - -
Bridgewater 4 No
Brookfield 4 Yes
Danbury 5 1 Yes

3 1 (seasonal) Yes

10 Yes

New Canaan 3 1 Yes
New Fairfield

3 No

3 1 No

12 Yes

Redding 1 1 Yes

Ridgefield 5 2 No

11 0 Yes

1 1 Yes

3 0 Yes

Table 7: Summary of Assessor's office Staffing

WestCOG

CAMA Coordi

VALUATION METHODS FOR REAL PROPERTY OVERVIEW

The International Association of Assessing Officers (“IAAQ”) identifies three accepted approaches for mass
valuation of real property: Income, Cost, and Market. The Market approach uses comparable sales and multiple
regression analysis to determine the market value for different classes of real property and is the most commonly
used approach for residential mass valuation. The Income approach utilizes net operating income as a proxy for
value, and utilizes a gross rent multiplier or capitalization rate to convert the net income to value. The Cost
approach utilizes a replacement construction cost less depreciation for any improvements. Many governments
utilize Marshall and Swift (produced by Corelogic), a valuation guideline for the Cost approach that is updated on a
regular basis and utilizes local factoring to estimate replacement cost. When the Cost and Income approaches are
used for buildings and improvements, it is common for excess land to be valued separately.

N 14 @axiomatic

Page 15 of 46



Table 8 details the valuation methods being utilized in each community and whether they utilize Marshall and
Swift. The valuation methods are shown in short hand, Market (M), Cost (C), and Income (I). Most communities
utilize at least two valuation methods and integrate with Marshal and Swift. Users were largely satisfied with each
of the valuation method tools provided within their existing Real Property CAMA System. The valuation methods
used in WestCOG communities are consistent with published IAAO, and industry standards.

Marshall & Residential | Commercial | Industrial |
vunicpaty | switt (€] 1wl c] 1 Imleli
X X X X X

Bethel Yes X X X X
Bridgewater No X X X
Brookfield No X X X X X X X X X
Danbury Yes X X X X X X X X
Yes X X X X X X X X X
Yes X X X
New Canaan No X X X X X
New Fairfield No X X X X X X X X
Yes X X X X X X X X
Yes X X X
Yes X X X X X X X
Redding Yes X X X X X
Ridgefield No X X X X X X X X X
Stamford Yes X X X X X X X
No X X
Yes X X X

Table 8: Valuation Methods

PARCEL MAPPING

Parcel map maintenance is conducted annually at minimum by a municipality, although Bethel indicated they did not
update last year, unless they have dedicated staff to that process in which case it can be as frequent as monthly or daily.
Parcel map boundaries are updated based on information from deeds, site plans, and the Real Property CAMA system. All
surveyed WestCOG communities maintain geospatial parcel data (GIS). Table 9 details who maintains the parcel map data,
the update schedules, and last date updated for each community. Several smaller and mid-sized communities expressed
interest in coordinating with WestCOG for parcel map updates.

00  naton and Implementat 15 @axiomatic

Page 16 of 46



Parcel Map Update

Municipality Parcel Map Maintainer Schedule Last Parcel Map Update
Tighe & Bond Annually 10/01/2015"
Assessor/WestCOG On Demand 2016

Brookfield Sharlow Tech Group & New Quarterly Q4 2016
Sewall Monthly 10/01/2016
m Assessor Daily Ongoing
| Greenwich | Assessor Monthly Ongoing
Tighe & Bond Monthly Ongoing
Assessor Semi-Annually In Progress
[ New Milford | Assessor Annually 10/01/2016
IT/GIS 3 Years 10/01/2016
[ Norwalk | Internal Monthly Ongoing
CDM Smith Annually In Progress
Internal Ongoing Ongoing
M Internal Ongoing Ongoing
[ Weston | New England GEO Annually 10/1/2016
| Westport | Sewell - :
| wilton | CAl Annually 10/1/2016

Table 9: Summary of Parcel Map Maintenance & Public Access Portals

PUBLIC DATA ACCESS PORTALS

Many WestCOG communities make their GIS parcel maps and Real Property CAMA database available to the public online
in read-only format. Real Property data is made available through an online searchable database interface that provides
users with property attribute summaries, and typically includes photos and building sketches. GIS parcel maps are made
available through online geospatial applications which allows users to navigate a map to identify parcels or through a
search interface that allows access to limited attributes. Many of the public access websites are provided by third-party
vendors, although larger municipalities may develop and maintain their own systems. Stamford has a GIS site through
ArcGIS online, however it contains only an index map, due to cost. It should also be noted that Greenwich has GIS files
which may be publicly downloadable, and a public access viewer in city hall, but intentionally does not provide a public
access web site. Details of public access portals are shown in Table 10.

! Date from survey indicates the map was not updated last year. Verified through Tighe & Bond website.
i condnatonan tementns 16 @axiomatic

Page 17 of 46




m
____Deployed | Maintainer | __Deployed | _Maintainer

No N/A Yes Vision

Yes NE GEO Yes Vision

No N/A Yes Vision

| Darien | Yes Yes Yes Unknown

| Greenwich | No N/A No N/A

No N/A Yes Appraisal Online

Yes Tighe & Bond Yes Vision

| New Milford | Yes App Geo Yes Vision

| Newtown | Yes NE Geo Yes Vision

| Norwalk | No N/A Yes Vision

Yes com Yes Vision

No N/A Yes PropertyRecords

| sherman | No N/A No N/A

Yes? Internal Yes Vision

| Weston | No N/A Yes apublic

Yes Sewell Yes Vision

[ wilton_____| No N/A Yes Vision

Table 10: Public Portal Summary

TRANSFERS & LOT LINE CHANGES

Ownership transfers, and lot-line adjustments are recorded in the Town Clerk’s office and represent one of the major
sources of updates to the CAMA database. Currently nine (9) of the surveyed communities utilize the COTTS system to
record these land records as shown in Table 11. Each of the transfers are manually abstracted from COTTS and the
appropriate changes are made to the Real Property CAMA database. All the communities using COTTS, apart from Weston,
indicated that this manual data transfer was very time consuming and they would benefit from an automated data transfer.
This is discussed further in the initial recommendations section.

2 Does not contain parcels only map index.

00  naton and Implementat 17 @axiomatic

Page 18 of 46



http://tighebond.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=da44c70aaef04145bcd39517556520fb
http://tighebond.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=da44c70aaef04145bcd39517556520fb
http://bethel.univers-clt.com/
http://bethel.univers-clt.com/
http://gis.vgsi.com/bridgewaterct/Search.aspx
http://gis.vgsi.com/bridgewaterct/Search.aspx
http://brookfield.mapxpress.net/
http://brookfield.mapxpress.net/
http://gis.vgsi.com/brookfieldct/Search.aspx
http://gis.vgsi.com/brookfieldct/Search.aspx
http://gis.vgsi.com/danburyct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/danburyct/
http://assessment.darienct.gov/pt/forms/htmlframe.aspx?mode=content/home.htm
http://assessment.darienct.gov/pt/forms/htmlframe.aspx?mode=content/home.htm
http://assessment.darienct.gov/pt/forms/htmlframe.aspx?mode=content/home.htm
http://appraisalonline.newcanaanct.gov/search.php
http://appraisalonline.newcanaanct.gov/search.php
http://hosting.tighebond.com/NewFairfieldCT_Public_new/
http://hosting.tighebond.com/NewFairfieldCT_Public_new/
http://gis.vgsi.com/newfairfieldct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/newfairfieldct/
https://newmilfordct.mapgeo.io/?latlng=41.587864%2C-73.425014&zoom=12
https://newmilfordct.mapgeo.io/?latlng=41.587864%2C-73.425014&zoom=12
http://gis.vgsi.com/newmilfordct/Search.aspx
http://gis.vgsi.com/newmilfordct/Search.aspx
http://maps.newtown-ct.gov/
http://maps.newtown-ct.gov/
http://gis.vgsi.com/newtownct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/newtownct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/NorwalkCT/Parcel.aspx?pid=78
http://gis.vgsi.com/NorwalkCT/Parcel.aspx?pid=78
http://townofreddingct.org/government/land-records/gis/
http://townofreddingct.org/government/land-records/gis/
http://gis.vgsi.com/reddingct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/reddingct/
http://www.propertyrecordcards.com/SearchMaster.aspx?towncode=118
http://www.propertyrecordcards.com/SearchMaster.aspx?towncode=118
http://stamfordct.maps.arcgis.com/apps/SimpleViewer/index.html?appid=8bd89187b7324a57b263d51bd020cc40
http://stamfordct.maps.arcgis.com/apps/SimpleViewer/index.html?appid=8bd89187b7324a57b263d51bd020cc40
http://gis.vgsi.com/stamfordct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/stamfordct/
http://www.qpublic.net/ct/weston/search.html
http://www.qpublic.net/ct/weston/search.html
https://geopower.jws.com/westport/
https://geopower.jws.com/westport/
http://gis.vgsi.com/westportct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/westportct/
http://gis.vgsi.com/WiltonCT/
http://gis.vgsi.com/WiltonCT/

No. of

Municipality Transactions Town Clerk Software
: :
20 CoTTS
No Response COTTS
1,600 CoTTS
[ Darien | 750 CoTTS
[ Greenwich | 800-850 CT Land Records (Xerox)
240 coTTS
: :
[ New Milford | 500 CoTTS
[ Newtown | 600 CoTTS
m 2,000 NewVision Systems
300-500 COTTS
1,200-1,500 COTTS
(sherman [ :
m 3,300 NewVision Systems
[ Weston | 200 COTTS
[ Westport | - coTTS
[ wilton | 400-500 CT Land Records (Xerox)

Table 11: Transfer Counts and Town Clerk Software

PERMITTING

Building permit applications are filed with the municipal building or land development department. These are reviewed and
used as an indication of changes to improvements, prompting the inspector to perform a site visit to pick-up new or
changed attributes. Brookfield, New Milford, Newtown, Redding, and Ridgefield are all scheduled to install the ViewPermit
software application. It may be beneficial to establish a user group to facilitate roll-out, and centralize training. This is
discussed in more detail in the initial recommendations section. It should be noted that several WestCOG communities are
listed on the CRCOG website (https://www.viewmypermitct.org/) and any regional effort should be coordinated to avoid
duplication of services and effort. A summary of permitting software is presented in Table 12.

00  naton and Implementat 18 @axiomatic

Page 19 of 46


https://www.viewmypermitct.org/

Municipality Permitting Software  Permitting Software Implemented

: :
None :
View Permit Planned
Egov Yes
“ City View Yes
(Harris)
m Cornerstone Yes
None -
: :
View Permit Planned
View Permit Planned
[ Norwalk | Acella Planned (existing is cornerstone)
View Permit Planned
View Permit Planned
[Sherman : :
View Permit Yes
M Munis City Yes
[Westport : :
RV New World Software Yes

Table 12: Permitting & Deed Recording Summary

BILLING & COLLECTIONS

Utilized by the Tax Collector, billing and collection (“BCO”) software receives taxpayer and taxable valuation data from both
Real and Personal Property CAMA through automated data exports. The BCO software uses this information to create and
manage bill records for each tax account. It also contains bank information for escrow billing if taxes are paid by an escrow
agent. Annual bills are typically generated in a batch and are either printed and mailed internally, or through a vendor.
Statements and delinquent accounts are generally printed and mailed internally. Financial information recorded in the BCO
software is regularly reconciled and distributed to the appropriate funds in the community’s financial management system
which is run by the local Treasurer or Finance Director. The Finance Department is beyond the scope of this study; however,
each responding community’s platform is presented to provide clarity on interdependency of BCO software.

Ten (10) of the surveyed communities utilize QDS BCO software and indicated that they were pleased with the product, as
were the communities that utilized QDS for printing or mailing. Darien was also very satisfied with their solution which
utilizes Walsh BCO software and Automated Mailing Service, LLC. A summary of the collected Billing & Collections overview
is presented in Table 13.

00  naton and Implementat 19 @axiomatic

Page 20 of 46




BCO Finance Annual Bills
Municip Software Software Bills Printed By Mailed By
Bethel - - - -
Bridgewater Qbs Qbs In House
Brookfield QDS Munis Qbs Qbs
Danbury Qbs Qbs Qbs

Walsh Munis Automated Mailing Automated
Service Mailing Service

Qbs Munis Qbs Qbs
New Canaan Qbs Munis
New - - - -
Fairfield
New Milford Qbs Qbs Qbs
Newtown Qbs Phoenix QDbs Corporate

Munis Munis Internal Internal
Redding Qbs Munis QDS In House
Ridgefield Qbs Munis Qbs External Service

Qbs Infosys Document Document

Technologies Technologies
Munis
Qbs New World In House In House

Table 13: Billing, Collection and Finance Summary

PERSONAL PROPERTY CAMA

Personal Property as defined by CGS § 12-41 includes anything that is movable, and is not a permanent part of real estate.
This includes items such as business-owned furniture, fixtures, unregistered motor vehicles and snowmobiles, machinery
used in mills and factories, and utility equipment (cables, wires, poles, underground mains, conduits, pipes and other
fixtures of water, gas, electric and heating companies). It does not include leasehold improvements considered furniture
and fixtures of offices, hotels, restaurants, taverns, halls, factories, and manufacturers.

Personal Property declarations are filed annually by November 1%, and per CGS § 12-41(d). Declarations can be filed
electronically, although most responding communities do not have e-file. Personal Property taxable value (70% of its
depreciated market value) is set by the Personal Property CAMA which contains the depreciation tables for all categories of
reported assets.

All registered or unregistered motor vehicles are taxable at 70% of their retail value as set by National Automobile Dealers
Association (NADA) annually in the town which they normally leave from and return to (or remain) although there are
exceptions per CGS § 12-71.

Eleven (11) of the surveyed communities utilize QDS Personal Property, and only New Milford supports E-filing of Personal
Property Declarations. Many of the communities expressed an interest but have not deployed the E-file module. Several
communities commented that the interaction with the State regarding motor vehicle data could be improved.

WestCOG
CAMA Coordination and le i 20

@axiomatic

Page 21 of 46


https://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/chap_203.htm#sec_12-41
https://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/chap_203.htm#sec_12-41
https://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/chap_203.htm#sec_12-41

WestCOG

CAMA Coordi

ion and

Personal
Property
CAMA

Municipality
Bethel =

Bridgewater Qbs
Brookfield Qbs
Danbury QDbs
Walsh
Qbps
New Canaan Qbs
New -
Fairfield
Qbps
Qbs
Munis
Redding Qbs
Ridgefield QDS
Qbps
Qbps
Westport -
Qbps

Electronic No. of Personal No of Motor

Filing Property Accounts Vehicles
No 106 2,042
No 1,500 18,000
No 4,000 69,000
Yes 1,000 18,000
No 4,306 54,000
No 881 17,156
Yes
No 1,800 26,000
Yes 3,500 85,000
No 528 8,725
No 1,500 27,000
No 4,800 125,000
No 250 8,747
No 1,325 16,031

Figure 7: Personal Property Summary
21 @®@axiomatic

Page 22 of 46



INITIAL RECOMMENDATIONS

REGIONALIZED CAMA

Axiomatic’s initial recommendations for WestCOG were developed through survey data analysis, interviews with
participating municipal officials, and industry experience. These recommendations should be adapted based on a
comprehensive review with WestCOG and the partner communities. Most of the municipalities that responded to the
project were open to the idea of regional collaboration if it would provide some benefit to their jurisdiction. Generally, the
larger towns and cities would realize limited benefit from a regional effort as their operations are already largely
automated, self-sufficient, and fully funded.

The goal of this study was to investigate possibilities for regional cooperation among WestCOG member communities to
provide efficiencies and cost savings. Among the options considered was a regionalized single Real Property CAMA platform
for some or all WestCOG communities. It is Axiomatic’s opinion that a single centralized Real Property CAMA system is not
feasible. Outside of New England, property assessment is carried out at the county level, and in some instances at the state
level (e.g. Montana). A regionalized Real Property CAMA system, while technologically feasible with respect to data size
and administration, would have significant costs related to data migration and standardization, and loss of local control
which would likely be met with stiff resistance.

When considering a possible regional Real Property CAMA strategy Danbury, Stamford, and Norwalk would likely be
excluded due their size i.e. number of records, property types i.e. high-density commercial and industrial, and
administrative burden i.e. number of exemptions, transfers, and attributes updates in relation to the other WestCOG
municipalities. They would most likely realize little to no benefit from a regionalized system and incur significant costs for
data conversion, migration and testing of a centralized platform. Darien, Greenwich, and New Canaan would likely also be
excluded due to the complexity of their valuation models, and the unique nature of their ultra-high value properties. These
high-value communities could conceivably be grouped onto a single system due to similarities in their value profiles;
however, they currently utilize three different systems. Thus, two of the three would incur significant costs to standardize
and convert to a single system. There would be little cost savings for this effort as it would not change staffing requirements
to conduct appraisal activities, and licensing fees savings would likely not be significant. Of the remaining communities, all
but Bethel and Ridgefield utilize Appraisal Vision meaning that Real Property CAMA system would likely be the chosen
regional system to minimize overall conversion costs. This would impose a significant cost barrier for conversion of Bethel
and Ridgefield to participate and convert to the Appraisal Vision platform.

Barriers to regionalization for the remaining 8 communities who participated in the study (Bridgewater, Brookfield, New
Fairfield, New Milford, Newtown, Redding, Weston, and Wilton) are discussed below.

1. CAMA System Conversions Occur During Revaluations: It is common industry practice (across the country) to sync
the changing of a Real Property CAMA system with a revaluation. This is because different systems will produce
different values with identical inputs because of differences in value calculation models. To eliminate questions
related to system changes, Assessors typically change systems when conducting a revaluation so as to not raise
guestions with the public regarding the reason for valuation change beyond the answer of revaluation. Figure 3
detailed the revaluation cycle for the WestCOG member communities. Ridgefield, Redding, Wilton and Newtown
are conducting revaluations currently and as such would be unable to participate for the next five (5) years.
Weston is scheduled for a revaluation in 2018 and it is unrealistic to believe that a regional system would be ready
for them in time. The remaining four municipalities are conducting revaluations in 2019 (New Fairfield), 2020 (New
Milford), 2021 (Bridgewater and Brookfield) and would be the only possible participants within the next five (5)
years.

WestCOG

00  naton and Implementat 22 @axiomatic

Page 23 of 46




Cost of Data Conversion: For these four (4) communities (Bridgewater, Brookfield, New Fairfield, and New Milford)
the cost of data migration, conversion, and validation to exist in a single Real Property CAMA system would be
significant and likely not be recovered by savings in license fees as their annual maintenance are comparatively low
(see Table 6). This conversion would need to include both attribute data, as well as cost tables and valuation
models (which may need to be re-built from scratch).

Lack of Incentive & Desire: The most significant hurdle to regionalizing Real Property CAMA is the overall lack of
desire and incentive. None of the communities that responded to the survey and/or were interviewed expressed
an interest in switching Real Property CAMA systems. Additionally, there is a substantial cost associated with the
process of switching systems (data conversion, testing, validation) that most communities have undertaken at
some point over the last twenty (20) years. It can be speculated that this heightens their lack of desire to
undertake a conversion or system change unless necessary.

Required Customizations: Customization would likely be required to create and support multiple data connections
for exports minimally to each jurisdictions billing and collections software. Additional customizations may be
required to restrict access to each jurisdictions data (both prevent unauthorized updating of each community’s
data, and to protect personal identifiable information which may be stored in the CAMA from disclosure).

Procurement & Coordination: Likely the participating municipalities would need to enter an agreement or
memorandum of understanding expressing a commitment to the project prior to procurement. This agreement
would also have to include a termination clause to allow communities to opt out of participation at a future date.
This clause would need to consider recalculating fee distribution, and providing appropriate notice to the
remaining member communities. Determining an appropriate procurement method for the regional system would
add another layer of complexity.

For the above reasons, Axiomatic does not recommend implementation of a regional Real Property CAMA system. Other

regionalization opportunities were identified which may be better suited to the government structure of the WestCOG

communities.

OTHER

REGIONALIZATION OPPORTUNITIES

Although there are significant hurdles to regionalized Real Property CAMA, through the discovery process other potential

regionalization efforts were identified. These activities all orbit or are related to the Real Property CAMA process/system

and could create greater collaboration and information sharing amongst the WestCOG communities.

WestCOG

CAMA Coordi

Regional GIS Parcel Viewer: Most communities are utilizing a third-party vendor to prepare and host both a GIS
Parcel Viewer, and a Real Property CAMA database search tool. There is opportunity for WestCOG to provide a
Regional Parcel Viewer to encompass the functionality of both systems. A regionalized approach to hosting/serving
out public data would provide an excellent service and cost savings to smaller and medium-sized communities who
could discontinue their existing services. Utilizing a relational connection between geospatial parcel data and Real
Property CAMA data could provide a rich tapestry of information that would eliminate the need for two (2)
separate applications (one for GIS, one for CAMA). A Regional Public Data portal can provide numerous ancillary
benefits to economic development (commercial site selectors), public safety (emergency services, mutual aid) and
regional planning. This type of tool could also directly benefit municipal assessment officials by allowing them to
better identify unique properties in neighboring jurisdictions (e.g. Golf Courses, pharmaceutical manufacturing
facilities etc.) which can support valuation and abatement case management.

Automated Deed Integration: The most common application configuration utilized in the WestCOG communities is
the COTTS (Town Clerk) and Appraisal Vision 6.X (Assessor). Communities using this configuration expressed an
interest in developing an integration point to facilitate the transfer of deed data semi-automatically into the Real

o e mplementat 23 @axiomatic

Page 24 of 46



WestCOG

CAMA Coordi

Property CAMA system. Ideally, the integration point would capture and copy grantor, grantee, transfer date,
instrument number, book, page, real estate transfer tax paid (if applicable) and calculated or recorded sale price (if
applicable) from COTTS to Appraisal Vision. The integration point would be a lightweight application that would
use a wildcard search on the deed grantor to develop a list of potential real property records based on
owner/taxpayer name. The user would select the appropriate real property record and qualify the sale
(determination of arm’s length status), and edit any information as required. Upon completion, the transfer would
be recorded in the Real Property CAMA system. This process would eliminate data entry and associated potential
for errors, and provide a significant time savings to WestCOG communities. Although not a regionalized CAMA
system, this type of solution could have a positive impact on Real Property CAMA system users.

Group Implementation of Personal Property E-File: There is an opportunity for WestCOG to facilitate Personal
Property E-file to streamline the collection and processing of personal property declarations. Currently most
municipalities utilize QDS Personal Property CAMA to determine personal property assessed values, but
declarations are filed in hard copy and manually entered. Currently only New Milford has E-file functionality.
WestCOG could facilitate a group implementation of the QDS E-file for personal property or work to develop a
similar solution. The impact of E-file for personal property would have a large impact (positive) on the Personal
Property CAMA system users. It would also impact of thousands of filers who could also realize significant time
savings.

GIS Parcel Map Updates: Several of the smaller communities indicated that they have had difficulty getting their
parcel maps updated due to the small number of changes needed each year. There is an opportunity for WestCOG
to provide these services to the small and medium sized communities.

User Group for View Permit: Many communities are implementing ViewPermit software to manage and automate
their permitting and licensing processes. There may be an opportunity for WestCOG to establish a regional View
Permit user group to allow users to collaborate on successful deployments. Leveraging a centralized knowledge
base would allow WestCOG communities to learn from each other’s experiences and improve deployments over
time. This would also allow the potential for regionalized user training and potentially licensing. Integrations could
also be developed to show permits on a regional GIS system or to interface directly with Real Property CAMA to
provide an indicator that the site may require a visit.

Complex Property Data Sharing and Knowledgebase: Most communities indicated that they have unique
properties which are difficult to assess and would benefit from being able to view similar properties in neighboring
jurisdictions. This sharing could be facilitated by WestCOG through the Regional GIS Parcel Viewer outlined in
recommendation. There is an opportunity to expand upon that concept with additional tools that would not be
available to the public. In many neighboring jurisdictions, there are common large commercial and industrial
property owners that consistently apply for abatements. Many of these large land owners (typically companies like
big box stores) have learned that most municipalities do not have the resources to take abatement cases to court
and are more likely to settle. Providing WestCOG community Assessors with a forum to track and interact with
each other regarding abatements, defenses and outcomes could provide a valuable tool. The development of an
assessment and abatement knowledge base could potentially benefit WestCOG communities and other
communities throughout Connecticut.

Facilitate E-file Exemption Application: As indicated in this report, opinions on the possibilities for E-file of
exemption applications were varied. Several communities brought up developing an E-file for these applications
without being prompted. This is a process would reduce paper shuffle, data entry and associated errors. It also
should be recognized that this type of application would have potential value to WestCOG communities and other
communities throughout Connecticut.

e 24 @axiomatic

Page 25 of 46



Western Connecticut WES]@
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 7

Attachment 4a

DRAFT Council Minutes

for the 4/20/2017 Regular Meeting
Held at the Ridgefield Visiting Nurse Association
27 Governor Street, Ridgefield, Connecticut 06877

Chairman Jayme Stevenson - Vice Chairman Susan Chapman
Secretary David Gronbach - Treasurer Patricia Llodra

MEMBERS ATTENDING

Bethel ..., First Selectman Matthew Knickerbocker
Bridgewater......oevvvueunnnnn. Absent

Brookfield .........ccocomerveeee.. Absent

Danbury......revceeeerrenne. Mayor Mark Boughton

Darien ..., Alternate Senior Planner Fred Doneit
Greenwich......occovv. First Selectman Peter Tesei

New Canaan.........coo....... First Selectman Robert Mallozzi
New Fairfield..................... Absent

New Milford..........ccoue..... Absent

Newtown ........coeeenne.. First Selectman Patricia Llodra
Norwalk .......ccooommrrvevvrrrenee. Chief of Staff Laoise King
Redding..........ccoommrrreverrnnnn. Absent

Ridgefield........ccmrrvvvrrnnnn. First Selectman Rudy Marconi
Sherman ..., First Selectman Clay Cope
Stamford...reviieens Mayor David Martin
Weston.....eeeeeeeeenennne. First Selectman Nina Daniel
Westport .........oeveeeennnn. First Selectman James Marpe
Wilton....oerereeennne First Selectman Lynne Vanderslice

OTHERS ATTENDING

CT DEEP Commissioner Robert Klee, Stamford Chief of Staff Michael Pollard,
Roxane Fromson of CTDOT, Patricia Cimarosa and Martin Fox of the Westport
Transit District, Senior Legislative Associate Daniel Giungi of the CT Conference of
Municipalities, Norwalk Transit CEO Kimberly Morton, Eversource Community
Relations Specialist Garrett Sheehan, Richard Schreiner and Harrison Wenchell of
HARTransit, and WestCOG staff members Francis Pickering, Patricia Payne, Robert
Sachnin, Michael Sullivan, Michael Towle, Nicole Sullivan and Jonathan Chew.

1 Riverside Road, Sandy Hook, CT 06482 « T 475-323-2056
F 253-252-8543 « Visit us at westcog.org
Page 26 of 46



CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 12:30 pm by Treasurer Patricia Llodra.

FEATURED GUEST

Commissioner Robert Klee of the CT Department of Energy and Environmental
Protection: Pat Llodra introduced DEEP Commissioner Robert Klee, who made a
PowerPoint presentation regarding the services of his Department. Topics he
reviewed included upcoming federal budget reductions, components of recycling,
electric vehicles and their charging stations, stormwater management, phosphorous
removal from treatment plant discharges and other matters.

The presentation was structured as a dialogue with interaction by WestCOG
members throughout. Discussion continued, after which the Commissioner was
thanked for his presentation.

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.

ACTION ITEMS

Approval of 3/16/2017 Minutes: After review and on a motion made Rob Mallozzi
and seconded by Rudy Marconi, the minutes of the meeting of 3/16/2017 were
unanimously approved, with abstentions by Lynne Vanderslice and Fred Doneit.

Quarterly Financial Report: Patty Payne presented the report for January thru
March 2017, attached to the agenda and entitled “WestCOG Operating Statement
and Balance Sheet.” Pat Llodra commented that a revision of the format to more fully
reflect grant type will soon be included.

There were questions and answers. Then on a motion made Matt Knickerbocker and
seconded by Rudy Marconi, the quarterly financial report was unanimously
approved.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Annual Report on Regional Services: Francis Pickering distributed a report entitled
“WestCOG 2016 Annual Report.” He overviewed recent progress with planning for
regional services.

Local Transportation Capital Improvement Program (LOTCIP): Rob Sachnin
stated that we will soon have projects proceeding to construction for the first time in
this program; New Fairfield and Stamford will receive a check from CTDOT for
project construction, New Milford next. He complimented the efforts of Robert
Brinton, P.E., in managing LOTCIP project development.

Legislative Update: Francis Pickering noted that about 100 legislative proposals are
currently being monitored. He commented on those that would impact the
structuring and funding of COG regional services.

Page 27 of 46
Western Connecticut Council of Governments 20f3



State Budget Update: There was then a discussion of proposed changes to
responsibility for funding teacher retirement costs and other state budgetary issues
affecting municipalities.

Snow Plow Routing Study: Francis Pickering updated members on the upcoming
initiation of this planning study. There were comments and discussion.

Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal (CAMA) Study: Francis Pickering updated
members on this topic, by which West COG has initiated an assessment of municipal
CAMA, tax billing and collections systems, as well as related business practices and
IT resources.

Local Road Accident Reduction Program Solicitation: Robert Sachnin reviewed
LRARP funding, a federal source thru CTDOT for low-cost safety improvements on
local roads.

Projects are submitted by COGs and then selected by CTDOT based on a benefit to
cost ratio, he said. He overviewed program requirements and distributed memos
entitled “2017 LRARP Methodology” and “CT DOT 2017 LRARP.”

Responsible Growth and TOD Grant Program Solicitation: Rob Sachnin notified
members that CTOPM is requesting applications for its 2017 Responsible Growth
and Transit Oriented Development Grant Program. He summarized the application
process.

STAFF PRESENTATION

Ladders of Opportunity: GIS Analyst Michael Sullivan presented on this topic,
noting that FHWA requires each MPO to factor “Ladders of Opportunity” into its
transportation planning. He distributed a brochure entitled “Ladders of Opportunity
Overview 2017” summarizing WestCOG involvement with Ladders, defined as an
effort to induce positive social and economic impacts from the use of federal
transportation funds.

A PowerPoint presentation by Mr. Sullivan displayed some of the demographic maps
produced for Ladders analysis. He also demonstrated GIS tools that enable the mode
of travel and travel time for any origin - destination pair to be quantified. Questions
and answers followed.

OTHER BUSINESS / ADJOURNMENT

There was no other business. Pat Llodra then stated that the next WestCOG meeting
will be held on May 18, 2017 at the office of the Ridgefield Visiting Nurse Association.
Then on a motion made by Matt Knickerbocker and seconded by Rudy Marconi, the
meeting was adjourned at 1:25 pm.

Page 28 of 46
Western Connecticut Council of Governments 30f3



Western Connecticut WEST
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS d
Attachment 4b

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION FOR AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN WESTCOG
AND CTDOT TO FUND HVMPO AND SWRMPO TRANSPORTATION PLANNING
FOR FY2018 AND FY2019

Ridgefield, Connecticut

|, David Gronbach, Secretary of the Western Connecticut Council of Governments (hereinafter “WestCOG")
existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut, certify that the following is a true copy of the resolution
adopted by WestCOG at its duly called and held meeting on May 18, 2017 in Ridgefield, Connecticut, a
quorum being present:

WHEREAS The South Western Region Metropolitan Planning Organization (SWRMPO) and the
Housatonic Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization (HVMPO), in cooperation with the Connecticut
Department of Transportation (CTDOT), the Federal Highway Administration, and the Federal Transit
Administration, are responsible for carrying out the urban transportation planning processes within their
respective MPO regions;

WHEREAS the SWRMPO and HYMPO Unified Planning Work Programs are developed in cooperation with
the Connecticut Department of Transportation, the U.S. Department of Transportation, and transportation
stakeholders;

WHEREAS SWRMPO and HVMPO, in cooperation with CTDOT, are responsible for adopting their
respective Unified Planning Work Programs, and those Work Programs document the federally required
FY2018 and FY2019 metropolitan transportation planning work tasks;

WHEREAS WestCOG, as the hosting agency for SWRMPO and HVMPQO, and in cooperation with CTDOT,
will contract to receive and disperse planning funds to carry out the adopted Unified Planning Work Programs;

RESOLVED, that Chairman Jayme Stevenson or Vice Chairman Susan Chapman are hereby authorized to
direct Executive Director Francis Pickering to act on behalf of the WestCOG in negotiating and executing all
appropriate and necessary contractual instruments with the CTDOT for undertaking SWRMPO and HVMPO
regional transportation planning.

Such contracts are for obtaining financial assistance to carry on a mutually agreed upon program of
transportation planning, as detailed in the SWRMPO and HVMPQO Unified Planning Work Programs cited
above.

This resolution is in full force and effect as of May 18, 2017.

David Gronbach, Secretary
Western Connecticut Council of Governments
[Affix seal here]

Visit us online at westcog.org

1 Riverside Road, Sandy Hook, CT 06482 T 475-323-2060 * F253-252-8543
Page 29 of 46


http://westcog.org/

Attachment 4d

FY17-18 WestCOG Draft Budget - Operating Expense Summary

.

Indirect Operating

Direct (Grant

Expenses Expense funded) Total
Salaries S 265,207 748,332 || S 1,013,539
Taxes S 87,136 S 87,136
Insurance/Fringe S 157,824 S 157,824
Pension S 75,600 S 75,600
Consultants 603,111 | S 603,111
Payroll Services S 2,700 S 2,700
Audit S 20,000 S 20,000
Legal Services S 15,000 S 15,000
Other Services S 4,000 S 4,000
Rent/Utilities S 117,812 S 117,812
Service Agreements S 9,632 23,041 | S 32,673
Reproduction S 1,000 S 1,000
Supplies $ 11,000 $ 11,000
Travel/Meetings/Prof. Dvlpmt. S 2,300 32,800 || S 35,100
Dues/Subscriptions S 12,294 S 12,294
Liability Ins. S 19,000 S 19,000
Postage/overnight S 1,500 S 1,500
Equipment Rental S 13,000 S 13,000
Public Notice/recruitment S 500 3,000 | S 3,500
Miscellaneous S 7,480 1,320 (| S 8,800
Depreciation S 4,000 S 4,000
Contingency built into individual
contracts 37,167 || S 37,167
Total || $ 826,985 1,448,771 | $ 2,275,756

Page 30 of 46




FY17-18 WestCOG Draft Budget - Revenue Source Summary

Oth
Revenue Sources Local Dues Federal State er * Total
Sources
General Fund/Admin
S 120,257 S 800 121,057

Regional SeTvVices-OP VT SGIA
(advance funding/reimbursable
grant) 478,000 478,000
MPO Transportation (SW)
(reimbursable grant) S 106,150 || S 606,574 45,493 758,217
MPO Transportation (HV)
(reimbursable grant) S 52,152 | S 320,933 28,082 401,167
LOTCIP (advance
funding/reimbursable grant) 81,000 81,000
Other Transportation Grants
(reimbursable grants) S 284,000 30,500 || S 20,500 335,000
RPIP OPM Snow Plow
(reimbursable grant) 238,250 238,250
CEDS Grant (reimbursable
grant) S 6,234 (| S 16,266 22,500
Public Health Directors S 7,000 7,000
DEMHS Region 5 S 13,725 13,725
Regional Election Monitor
(advance funding) 11,111 11,111

Total | S 284,793 | $ 1,227,773 912,436 | $ 42,025 2,467,027

* Other sources include local municipal matches & interest income

Page 31 of 46




Attachment 4e

J—
= i .
l ; One Hamden Center
|

1340 Sullivan Avenue | 2319 Whitney Avenue, Suite 5-D

HR
South Windsar, CT 06074 | Hamden, CT 06518

HEN RY, RAYMOND Tel: (860) 644-5825 | Tel: (203) 288-4144
& THOMPSON, LLC ' Fax: (860) 644-5731 | Fax: (203) 248-9205

" Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Council Members .
Western Connecticut Council of Governments
Sandy Hook, CT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Western Connecticut Council of Governments of Sandy Hook,
Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Managemenrt’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
g P [y

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the

www. HRMTCPAS.com : info@HRMTCPAS.com

Accounting, Auditing, Tax, Estate Planning, and Small Business Consulting Services
Page 32 of 46



appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia) respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Western Connecticut Council of Governments, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in
financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 8 and 23 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Western Connecticut Council of Governments® basic financial statements. The Schedule of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance by Project, Schedule of Direct and Indirect Costs,
Determination of Indirect Cost Rate, and Financial Summary Report-Conn DOT are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule
of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and by the State Single Audit Act, and are also not a
required part of the basic financial statements,

The Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance by Project, Schedule of Direct
and Indirect Costs, Determination of Indirect Cost Rate, and Financial Summary Report-Conn DOT, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying

2

Page 33 of 46



accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance by Project, Schedule of Direct and Indirect Costs, Determination of Indirect
Cost Rate, and Financial Summary Report-Conn DOT, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards,
and the schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government duditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 19,
2017, on our consideration of Western Connecticut Council of Governments® internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Western Connecticut Council of Governments? internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

??JM' anmowaﬁ ﬁ' ﬂon\f:&on, #3

Henry, Raymond & Thompson, LLC
South Windsor, Connecticut
January 19, 2017

3

Page 34 of 46



WESTERN CONNECTICUT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
This discussion and analysis of Western Connecticut Council of Governments® financial performance is
provided by management to provide an overview of the Agency’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016. Please read this MD&A in conjunction with the Agency’s financial statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
¢ The net position of our governmental activities increased by $254,558
* The Agency received total funding of $2,633,789, which includes investment earnings of $820
* The General Fund reported a fund balance this year of $1,269,957
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement of
activities provide information about the activities of the Agency as a whole and present a longer-term
view of the Agency’s finances. Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the

short-term as well as what remains for future spending,

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Agency’s finances, in a2 manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Agency’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Agency is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Agency’s net position changed during
the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported
in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected revenues and earned but unused compensated absences).

Both of the Government-Wide Financial Statements distinguish between functions of the Agency that are
principally supported by intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the Agency include the basic services of the Agency, including
planning, pension and insurance and general administration. Local dues and state and federal grants
finance most of these activities. The Agency does not have business-type activities.

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
4

Page 35 of 46



STATE OF CONNECTICUT subfect: Audit Certification

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Woestern Connecticut Councl of Governments
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016
m e m o r a n d gy m date: May 8, 2017
to: Ms. Robbin Cabelus : from: Gerald F, Dobek
Transportation Planning Olrector Dire ffice of External Audits

Bureau of Policy and Planning Bureafr'of Finance

a%

»

We have completed our desk review of the single audit report of the Western Connecticut Councll of Governments for the Fiscal
Year Ended June 30, 2016, The report was prepared by Henry, Raymond & Thompson, LLC, Certified Public Accountants, based
on an audit made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, Govermment Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the Uhited States, the OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost

. Principles, and Audlt Requirements for Federal Awatds (Uniform Guidance), 2 CFR Part 200 and the State Single Audit Act,

Our review was made to determnine if the report meets the Uniform Guldance and the State Single Audit Act requirements, In
conducting our review we utilized the Gulde for Desk Reviews of Single Audit Reports issued by the Councll of Inspectors General
on Integrity & Efficlency (CIGIE), 2016 Edition, and the Cognlzant Agency Desk Review Check List for Governmental and Non-
Profit Entities, Rev. 11/23/16, Issued by the State of Connecticut, Office of Policy and Management.

Subsequent to the issuance of the single audit reports for the subject agency the CPA revised their reports to correct
misstatemenits in the Federal and State Findings and Questloned Costs Schedules and the Indirect Cost Schedule. A copy

of the revised reports s attached,

Based upon our review we concuded the revised report meets both the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Act
requirements in all materfal respects,

The revised report does not include any material compliance or material internal control system findings, which directly afféct
Federal and State Programs.

We have also completed our review of the subject agency’s revised Audit of Indirect Costs for the subject period, which
was prepared.by Henry, Raymond.& Thompson, LLC as performed.in. accordance with. Government Auditing Stendards for
compllance with the Uniform Guidance, The accepted Indirect Cost Rate is 132.37%.

Attachment-sent via emali

o Frandls Pickering, Executive Director [fpickering@westcog.org]
Patricia Payne, Sr. Financial Manager [ppayne@westcog.crg]
Josephine Harvey, Financlal Managerfiharvey@westcog.org)
G, Martin Hemy, Ir,, CPA, [martin h@hrmtcpas.com}
Richard Andreski ~ Bette Condon
Roxane Fromson
DOT BxdernalAudits@ct.gov
DOT.FedBiling@ct.gov
Terry Obey - Patrick Joyce
Maureen Kent - Sandy Infantino
Christine Conroy
Delrbhille Milloy
Audit File
Central Files (2601)
Eloise Powell - Connecticut FHWA
Crystal Santana - OPM
Willlam Plummer- OPM
Morgan Rice - OPM
Rita Stewart - DESPP

Page 36 of 46



Western Connecticut WEST
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

D

Attachment 4f
Memorandum of Understanding
Between
The Office of the Secretary of the State
And
Western Connecticut Council of Governments

Regional Election Monitor

WHEREAS, Section 3-77 of the Connecticut General Statutes provides that the Secretary of
the State may enter into such contractual agreements as may be necessary for the discharge of
her duties; and

WHEREAS, Sections 442, 443 and 444 of Public Act 15-5 of the June 2015 Special Session of the
Connecticut General Assembly, “An Act Implementing Provisions of the State Budget for the
Biennium Ending June 30, 2017, Concerning General Government, Education, Health and
Human Services and Bonds of the State,” (the Public Act) requires a regional election monitor
within each planning region, as defined in section 4-124i of the General Statutes who shall
represent, consult with and act on behalf of the Secretary of the State in preparations for and
operations of any election, primary or recanvass, or any audit conducted pursuant to section 9-
320f of the Connecticut General Statutes;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Public Act, the Western Connecticut Council of Governments
(“CO@G”), is required to enter into a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with the Office
of the Secretary of the State (“SOTS”), concerning the regional election monitor.

Therefore, SOTS and the COG agree to the following terms:

1. SOTS will pay $11,11t0 the COG to support the scope of services as listed in Schedule A

2. The COG will designate staff to receive communications from the Secretary of the State
to the Regional Election Monitor and receive information regarding activities in
Schedule A from the Regional Election Monitor.

3. SOTS and the COG acknowledge that the staff designated pursuant to paragraph 2
above will coordinate all aspects of the COG responsibilities of the proposal set forth
herein.

4. The COG will provide periodic reports to SOTS regarding the progress of services
rendered.

5. For the purposes of this MOU, the “complete project” is defined as completion of and
delivery of all work outlined in Schedule A.

6. Project Period: 7/1/16 to 6/30/17

Visit us online at westcog.org

1 Riverside Road, Sandy Hook, CT 06482 T475-323-2060 « F 253-252-8543
Page 37 of 46


http://westcog.org/

Page Two

Memorandum of Understanding

Secretary of the State of Connecticut

Western Connecticut Council of Governments

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have caused the Memorandum of
Understanding to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

David Gronbach, Secretary
Western Connecticut Council of Governments
May 18, 2017

Printed Name

Title

Date

Western Connecticut Council of Governments 20f5
Page 38 of 46



Page Three

Memorandum of Understanding

Secretary of the State of Connecticut

Western Connecticut Council of Governments

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have caused the Memorandum of
Understanding to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

Denise Merrill

Secretary of the State

Date

Western Connecticut Council of Governments 30f5
Page 39 of 46



SCHEDULE A - SCOPE OF SERVICES

l. Regional election monitor gualifications and payment for services

1. Not later than March first of the year of each regular election, the COG shall contract
with an individual, in accordance with section 4-124p of the general statutes, to serve as
the regional election monitor for such planning region.

2. The regional election monitor shall (1) be an elector of this state, (2) perform the duties
of the position in a nonpartisan manner, (3) have prior field experience in the conduct
of elections, and (4) be certified by the Secretary of the State or become certified by the
Secretary of the State as soon after execution of such contract as practicable.

3. The regional election monitor shall not be considered a state employee and shall, in
accordance with the contract set forth in (1) above, be compensated for the
performance of any duty agreed upon by the COG and reimbursed for necessary
expenses incurred in the performance of such duties by the COG.

4. The COG shall, in accordance with such contract, provide the regional election monitor
with any space, supplies, equipment and services necessary to properly carry out the
duties of the position.

5. The COG may terminate such contract at any time for any reason.

1. Regional council of government’s confirmation

The COG confirms that:

1. Each requirement described in Section | of Schedule A is satisfied and the contract
between the COG and the individual who shall serve as regional election monitor
specifies minimum expectations of performance under such contract;

2. Suchregional election monitor is subject to the control and direction of the Secretary of
the State;

3. Revocation by the Secretary of the State of such regional election monitor's certification
constitutes breach of such contract and results in immediate termination of such
contract; and

4. Such regional election monitor will be retained, absent termination of such contract by
the COG, until at least thirty days after such regular election.

I1. Coordination of regional instructional sessions and training

The Secretary of the State shall:

Western Connecticut Council of Governments 40f5
Page 40 of 46



Coordinate with the regional election monitor under contract with the COG as
described in Section | of this Schedule A to hold regional instructional sessions for
moderators and alternate moderators;

Establish the number of such regional instructional sessions to be held, provided at
least one such regional instructional session shall be held within the planning region
the facilities of the COG or any facility designated by the COG within the planning
region prior to each regular election; and

Train and certify the regional election monitor for purposes of performing the duties
of the position. The Secretary shall certify the regional election monitor if such
individual successfully completes training required pursuant to Section | of this
document, except the Secretary shall not so certify any individual who has been
convicted of or pled guilty or nolo contendere to, in a court of competent
jurisdiction, any (i) felony involving fraud, forgery, larceny, embezzlement or bribery,
or (ii) criminal offense under Title 9 of the General Statutes. Any such initial
certification granted shall expire two years after its effective date. Prior to expiration
of the initial or any subsequent certification, the regional election monitor may
undergo an abridged recertification process prescribed by the Secretary, and upon
successful completion thereof, such certification shall be renewed for two years after
the date of such completion. The Secretary may revoke such certification, with or
without cause, at any time.

V. Duties of the regional election monitor to be included in the contract

The duties of the regional election monitor that shall be in the contract between the COG and
the regional election monitor referenced in Section | of this Schedule A shall include, but not

be limited to:

1. Holding the regional instructional sessions described in Section Il of this
document;

2. Communicating with registrars of voters to assist, to the extent permitted under
law, in preparations for and operations of any election, primary or recanvass, or
any audit conducted pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Section 9-320f;
and

3. Transmitting any order or instruction issued by the Secretary of the State,
pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Section 9-3.

4. Keeping the COG informed of their regional election monitoring activities.

Western Connecticut Council of Governments 5of5

Page 41 of 46



Western Connecticut WEST
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

D

Attachment 5a
TO: HVMPO and SWRMPO Members
FROM: Rob Sachnin, WestCOG; Rick Schreiner, HARTransit
DATE: May 9, 2017

RE: State Matching Grant Program (MGP) for Elderly and Demand Response Transportation

Overview: CTDOT has announced a new application process for the MGP, which provides
matching funds for transportation of seniors and persons with disabilities to each municipality.
Funding is calculated based on the land area and population of those over age 60. The program
has been in place since 2006.

The funds cannot replace municipal funding for transportation services. If a town or city reduces
its funding for senior/disabled transportation, the grant will be proportionally reduced.

Required Materials: applications are no longer required to access funds for this program.
Municipalities need only submit the required certifications and budget information as follows:

¢ Maintenance of Effort Certification: should be completed and signed by the CFO. Please
also include a copy of the municipal budget page for FY 18 that shows the line item for this
transportation program.

e Assignability Certification: Those municipalities participating in a coordinated program
through a transit district (NTD or HARTransit) should complete this form and have it
signed by the municipal CEO assigning the grant to the transit district.

e Program Budget: The state has a new format for a two year program budget submission.

Deadline for certifications and budgets: June 2", All required materials should be sent
electronically to: ; ; ,

*applicants are encouraged to send materials in advance to Rick Schreiner, to confirm completeness
prior to formal submission.
It is recommended that the grant program and sign off for the MGP certifications be placed on
your municipal board’s agenda ASAP so that applications are not delayed.

Contacts - please direct all inquiries to:
Rick Schreiner, 203-744-4070 x129; ,
Attachments:

e Maintenance of Effort Certification
e Assignability Certification
e CTDOT Budget Page

Visit us online at westcog.org
1 Riverside Road, Sandy Hook, CT 06482 T 475-323-2060 * F 253-252-8543

Page 42 of 46


http://westcog.org/
mailto:Aimee.Marques@ct.gov
mailto:rsachnin@westcog.org
mailto:transit@westcog.org
mailto:ricks@hartransit.com
mailto:transit@westcog.org
mailto:ricks@hartransit.com

Western Connecticut WEST
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS —

State Matching Grant Program for Demand Responsive Transportation for Elderly and People with Disabilities
(Connecticut General Statutes 13b-38bb)

Population by Age Total Percent Land Area | Percent Total 2018
Municipality [~ ~¢ 4 | 65-69 | 70-74 | 75-79 | 80-84 | over 85 Population of Allocation | Sq. Miles | Land Area Allocation | Apportionment
over 60 Total Sq. Miles

Bethel 1096 769 476 426 339 357 3,463 0.488% | $12,196 17 0.339% $8,477 $20,673
Bridgewater 174 157 92 68 57 42 590 0.083% | $2,078 16.3 0.325% $8,128 $10,205
Brookfield 1006 799 515 375 335 297 3,327 0.469% | $11,717 10.8 0.395% $9,873 $21,590
Danbury 3882 2701 1893 1579 1329 1476 12,860 1.812% | $45,291 44 0.878% $21,939 $67,230
Darien 899 771 481 388 373 365 3,277 0.462% | $11,541 14.9 0.297% $7,429 $18,071
Greenwich 3468 2794 2173 1819 1540 1742 13,536 1.907% | $47,672 50.6 1.009% $25,230 $72,902
New Canaan | 1126 813 574 516 457 427 3,913 0.551% | $13,781 23.3 0.465% $11,618 $25,399
New Fairfield | 8n 614 17 272 199 155 2,468 0.348% | $8,692 25.3 0.505% $12,615 $21,307
New Milford | 1666 1152 777 560 469 469 5,093 0.717% | $17,937 64.4 1.284% $32,111 $50,048
Newtown 1492 1143 770 638 507 451 5,001 0.705% | $17,613 60.4 1.205% $30,117 $47,730
Norwalk 4553 3356 2399 2029 1633 1536 15,506 2184% | $54,610 27.7 0.552% $13,812 $68,422
Redding 646 429 274 233 248 359 2,189 0.308% | $7,709 32.2 0.642% $16,056 $23,765
Ridgefield 1444 1005 761 626 511 479 4,826 0.680% | $16,996 34.8 0.694% $17,352 $34,349
Sherman 254 227 151 100 61 68 861 0121% | $3,032 23.5 0.469% $11,718 $14,750
Stamford 6170 4497 3309 2907 2624 2756 22,263 3.136% | $78,407 39.9 0.796% $19,895 $98,302
Weston 609 443 234 188 148 102 1,724 0.243% | $6,072 20.8 0.415% $10,371 $16,443
Westport 1576 1296 881 751 670 628 5,802 0.817% | $20,434 22.4 0.447% $11,169 $31,603
Wilton 1003 754 501 432 362 441 3,493 0.492% | $12,302 26.8 0.535% $13,363 $25,665

**Source: 2018 CTDOT, Appendix A Allocation Table

Visit us online at westcog.org

1 Riverside Road, Sandy Hook, CT 06482 T475-323-2060 * F 253-252-8543
Page 43 of 46



http://westcog.org/

Attachment 1 — Maintenance of Effort Certification
All Applicants

The Chief Fiscal Officer (CFO) for the municipality must sign the maintenance of effort
certification. If municipal budgets for transportation programs for seniors and persons with disabilities
will remain unchanged (or increase) for SFY 2017, the CFO must fill out and sign version A. If
municipal budgets for transportation programs for seniors and persons with disabilities will be
reduced, the CFO must fill out and sign version B.

SFY 2018 State Matching Grant Program
Page 44 of 46



Attachment 1-Maintenance of Effort Certifications

Maintenance of Effort Certification (Version A)

The municipality of **Municipality** hereby certifies that State of Connecticut 13b-38bb Elderly and
Disabled Demand Responsive Municipal Grant Program funds are in addition to current municipal
levels of spending on transportation programs for Seniors and Persons with Disabilities.

Typed Name Title (Chief Fiscal Officer)

Signature Date

Maintenance of Effort Certification (Version B)

The municipality of **Municipality** will be reducing municipal levels of spending on transportation
programs for Seniors and Persons with Disabilities by **Percentage** and acknowledges that State of
Connecticut 13b-38bb Elderly and Disabled Demand Responsive Municipal Grant Program funds will
be reduced accordingly.

Typed Name Title (Chief Fiscal Officer)

Signature Date

Page 45 of 46



Attachment 2 — Grant Assignment Certification

Grant Assignment Certification

The municipality of **Municipality** is participating in a consolidated application for State of
Connecticut 13b-38bb Elderly and Disabled Demand Responsive Municipal Grant Program through
the **Municipality, Transit District or Regional Planning Organization**. The municipality of
**Municipality** hereby assigns its grant apportionment from the State program to **Municipality,
Transit District or Regional Planning Organization**, who will coordinate the operation of service.

Typed Name Title (CEO)

Signature Date

Page 46 of 46



	WestCOG minutes draft 2017-0420.docx
	Members Attending

	BUDGET FY17-18 Expenses-RevSummary for COG Pkg.pdf
	TempExcel
	FY17-18 Expenses Summary for COG Pkg.pdf
	TempExcel

	FY17-18 Revenues for COG Pkg.vertical.pdf
	TempExcel





